ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 27, 2012
3:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair - via tel econference
Senator Bert Stednan

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Presentation by Bryan Butcher, Conm ssioner, Department O
Revenue

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

BRYAN BUTCHER, Commi ssi oner

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented overview of the new tax revenue
managemnment system ( TRMB) i nformation.

CODY RI CE, Petrol eum Econom ¢ Policy Anal yst

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered econonic policy questions relating
to petrol eum producti on.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2012



BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Hel ped present overview of the new tax
revenue managenent system ( TRVS).

LENNY DEES, Audit Master

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered statistical questions about the
TRIVS.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:35:11 PM

COCHAIR JOE PASKVAN called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:35 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stedman, French and Co-Chair Paskvan.
Senat or W el echowski was present via tel econference.

Presentati on by Bryan Butcher, Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Revenue

CO CHAI R PASKVAN announced the presentation by Bryan Butcher on
the fall DOR forecast, the new tax revenue mnanagenent system
(TRVS) approved in the capital budget |ast year, and ACES taxes.

3:36:43 PM

BRYAN BUTCHER, Comni ssioner, Departnment of Revenue (DOR),
i ntroduced other nenbers of the departnent in attendance and on
line. He said his presentation would be on the fall 2011
forecast, tax credits, tax revenue managenent system production
tax audits, staffing levels for audits, a data assessnent
proj ect and regul ati ons.

Factors that affect production forecasting fall primarily in the
production and price side of things. Their petroleum econom st
and petrol eum engi neer and operators | ook at the geol ogy of the
area, a developnent plan, where they are with it and when it is
expected to be conpleted. The commercial piece of production
forecasting include: project economcs for a particular field
and well; oil price and nmarket conditions, governnent policy,
access reqgulation, taxation and a production profile wth
hi story.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN said he was nost intrigued by what process was
used to determ ne the project economcs, like internal rates of
return (IRR) or return on investnent (RA).

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER responded that they |ooked at the big
pi cture of what affects production going up or down.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said the reason for the neeting is to establish
facts that future deliberation wll be based on.

3:41:11 PM

COM SSIONER BUTCHER said slide 5 showed the history of
production from 2001 to 2011 and out to 2021. The forecast in
the Revenue Sources Book (RSB) includes all three elenents on
the right hand side between currently producing (currently
producing and the estimates into the future), under devel opnment
(currently under devel opnent but not producing but expected to
be producing in the near future) and under evaluation (such as
Pt. Thomson, which doesn't have a date for production, but stil
needs to be in the forecast because there is enough industry
focus on it) - the nost specul ative of the three.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if it would be possible to identify which
projects he is referencing in the under devel opnent categories
so they can better understand what the departnent replied upon
for the forecasts.

CODY RICE, Petroleum Economc Policy Analyst, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), said they could see what could be done in that
respect outside of the confidential limtations in AS 43.55.890
that requires aggregation of three or nore producers before
specific taxpayer confidential information can be released; it
is alnost entirely the basis of these production forecasts.
Were they were able to nane a project they already have in the
RSB.

3:43: 30 PM
SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned the comm ttee.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if fewer than three producers are not
di scl osed and nore than three are.

MR. RICE answered that is correct.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked where the list is in the RSB categories
of under devel opnent or under eval uation.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2012



MR. RICE answered that they don't have an actual list of three
or nmore owners because that changes periodically. He said page
38 of the RSB has production forecast assunptions; the far right
colum |ists a couple of projects including heavy viscous oi
devel opment at Orion, continued satellite devel opnent at Al pine,
Nanug and Alpine Wst fields, and continued devel opnent at
Qoogur uk and N kai t chuqg.

3:45: 44 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if names of three or nore producers can
be disclosed or just their production totals.

3:46: 04 PM

MR RICE replied that the details of production and taxpayer
particular information can only be disclosed under AS 43.55. 890.
Page 41 of the RSB describes fields currently under devel opnent
and currently under eval uation. Under current devel opnent
Nanook, Al pine Wst Satellites, A pine Borealis, and Oion

Satellites at Prudhoe Bay are listed. Under devel opnent drilling
Li berty, Oooguruk and Ni kaitchug are listed. Ongoing devel opnent
drilling at Prudhoe Bay and Kuparuk are listed. The distinction

is inportant for the under developnent |ayers particularly in
currently producing fields. There may be multiple layers within
a certain field. Prudhoe Bay has both currently producing and
under devel opnent fi el ds.

3:47: 44 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked where the 1 mllion barrel a day
aspirational goal set by the governor appears on the graph.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER indicated that it wasn't there. Wuat they
are seeing is a snapshot of how the departnent sees the
production forecast noving forward in the current investnent
envi ronnment, not what a future investnent environnent would | ook
like with passage of HB 110. The governor's 1 mllion barrels a
day is a big picture goal, and the departnment believes that
under the current investnment that wouldn't be achievable in the
next decade.

SENATOR FRENCH asked where Great Bear's efforts appear.
COW SSI ONER BUTCHER replied that is not included because the
first exploration well hasn't been drilled yet. It's far too

premature and there are many unanswered questi ons.

3:49: 39 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2012



BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Commi ssioner, Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), added that Geat Bear is a serious player in that both
their OPEX and CAPEX were taken into account in the potential
for plans going forward, but they weren't at the stage of
proj ecting production fromthose potential finds.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if they have a graph of how you get to 1
mllion barrels a day under HB 110 and where it would cone from

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER repl i ed no.

MR. TANGEMAN said they had some scenarios based on publically
avai lable information in House Finance |ast year. They weren't
just throwng a dart at the wall, but it was based on certain
types of fields.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said slide 5 shows a decline starting in 2001
for the past decade, but everyone agrees that the decline
started in 1989. He asked what the reason is for the onset of
t he decline at Prudhoe Bay begi nning in 1989.

MR.  TANGEMAN answered that nost fields realize a natura
decline, and this decline happens to track identically wth
Texas' decline. He explained that it's critical to include the
price of oil in looking at the decline. Wien oil prices started
to spike in the early and m d-2000, Al aska's decline continued
but Texas' flattened out and turned around; so did North Dakota
and Al berta.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the gas handling capacity as conpared
to the oil production capacity was a constraint on the North
Sl ope fields since 1989 to present.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied hasn't discussed that as being a
hi ndrance to devel opnent, but DNR could better answer that.

MR. TANGEMAN added that he also |ooked for to hearing those
answers from i ndustry.

SENATOR STEDMAN said in the late 70s TAPS was | ooking at running
out of oil somewhere after the turn of the century, a decade
ago. Historically, it looks like the field has a nornmal decline
curve and legislators hadn't seen advancing prices tied into
alterations of the production curve in the books they have
reviewed. Accountings of nost projects' full cycles also
indicate a rapid increase in production followed by a I|ong
t aperi ng decline.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2012



COMWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said that is true, but as they began
researching other oil producing jurisdictions including Texas,
it was anmmzing to see them flatten out and turn up when the

price of oil went up to $80-90 barrel - with the exception of
the State of Alaska. Technology has sone part in that, but the
economics of a project at $80 barrel is going to nmake many

devel opnments pencil that wouldn't pencil at $10.

3: 55: 55 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what percentage of the new production in
Texas is conventional and unconventi onal .

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER  answer ed al nost al | of t hat IS
conventional, and the up-curve will increase as shale oil is
devel oped.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said he heard at an energy conference in Austin
in Decenber that the average Texas well produces 5 barrels of
oil a day, but they are stripper wells that can be turned on and
off rapidly. It would make sense to him if there are 10,000
stripper wells, they could be turned on because the price is
$100 a barrel. Therefore, you have conventional oil extraction.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied that could be a possibility, but
nost of the discussion in Texas was that different areas were
having an explosion of exploration, developnent and production
that hadn't been occurring in the west and south. Many of the
stripper wells have had nost of the capital investnent already
put in to them and would still be profitable to produce at $30
barr el

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked for the data he is referencing as far as
the increases or decreases.

MR. TANGEMAN sai d absol utely.

SENATOR STEDVMAN said they need to nake sure the public
understands sone of these nuances when they are dealing wth
Texas and Okl ahoma where private individuals own the subsurface
rights; in Alaska the state owns all the subsurface, and it's
the only state in the union like that. So, a direct correlation
bet ween Al aska and Texas and Gkl ahoma or even North Dakota has
sonme | ogistical challenges to it, because we don't have severa
t housand i ndividual people up there all owning a few acres and
t he subsurface under their land that they can just go put a well
on.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2012



COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said that's absolutely true. There are many
situations that mke Alaska different; being able to drive
straight onto a drill pad and the resulting availability of
| abor are also big differences. That is one of the big hurdles
the State of Alaska deals with; it has nore estimted reserves
than just about any other oil producing jurisdiction in North
America, but it costs so nmuch nore to produce.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked his estimates of the recovery rates in
Prudhoe, Kuparuk and some of the major Alaska fields and if they
had been conpared to Texas, North Dakota and Ckl ahona.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER sai d he woul d get that information for him

4:01: 32 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN added that our decline |ooks I|ike Norway's
decline from 2.4 billion barrels to 2.1 billion barrels in 2008

to 2010 and the UK's decline from 1.5 billion to 1.3 billion
barrels, and the UK North Sea has simlar trends. In talking
about response to the high oil prices they need to broaden their
hori zon out beyond the Lower 48.

MR. TANGEMAN agreed that was a good point. Perhaps they should
conpare the Unites States to Norway seeing as how they are both
countries even though Al aska's reserves are so huge.

SENATOR STEDVAN said consultants would conpare Al aska to other
export basins.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN said it's also inportant to conpare fiscal
systens of other countries.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER agreed, but said it's difficult to conpare
Al aska's to anywhere.

4:05:57 PM

MR. TANGEMAN went to an RSB chart on slide 6 and said he felt it
was inportant to point out the overly optimstic forecasts that
have been done in the past.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if the departnent does a range of
forecasts |like the USGS does.

MR RICE replied that the departnent doesn't do probabilistic

forecasting in its production forecast. The reason is because
they don't think it would provide | awmmakers with a |ot of value,

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2012



because the range would be very wide in the out-years; it could
be instructive maybe one year out.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if forecasting is done in ranges of
nunbers.

MR. TANGEMAN replied yes; it is the inportant first step in this
| ayout. They have great confidence in the currently producing
nunber especially within the five-year w ndow. The variable
woul d be the capital and operating expense that would have to go
into getting the oil produced.

4:11: 34 PM
COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said the further out they go in analyzing
each operator and well, the less accurate they becone. But

regardless of whom the forecaster was the department's
production forecasts always end up being on the optimstic side.
Year after year they end up producing less than they expect to
pr oduce.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if it takes 7 to 10 years for a well to
conme on line.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER answer ed yes.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked how many 2012 wells are anticipated to be
flow ng this year based on decisions made back in 2005 to 2002.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied the currently producing wells are
infield drilling in Kuparuk and Prudhoe. N kaitchug and Ooogur uk
have conme on line in the last couple of years in that
approxi mate ti nmefrane.

SENATOR FRENCH said it is inportant to enphasize that at Kuparuk
and Prudhoe you can punch a hole in the ground from an existing
pad probably reconpleting a well that has already been done once
before and the oil can be put on line very quickly. He asked
what would happen if you suddenly drilled nore wells anong the
approximately 150 wells that are on the North Slope now Wuld
you get nore oil or is there just not nore to get there because
it's a 30 year old reservoir?

COWMWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied it depends on the kinds of wells

getting drilled and their pressures. He knows now that 8 to 8.5
bcf/day of gas is getting re-injected to keep the pressure up.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2012



He said slide 7 was a snapshot of what 300 barrels a day would
mean in terns deficits and taxes in today's nunbers. It nakes
the governor's point about how inportant it is to try and
flatten out our decline curve and eventually turn it around.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if he is using the current tax |aw.
COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER answer ed yes.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked him to do a snapshot of the sane
i nformation applying HB 110.

COW SS| ONER BUTCHER said he woul d do that.

4:18:41 PM
SENATOR STEDVAN asked how far into the future the 300,000
barrel s was targeted.

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied this discussion first started as a
result of Alyeska's study this summer and realizing sone
difficulties in oil flowing dowm the pipeline, which at the tine
was roughly 300,000 to 350,000 barrels. This snapshot i ntended
to show how i nportant oil and gas production is to the state.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he wanted to be careful to not push alarm
bells that aren't needed to be pushed. When the |egislature did
the original PPT they put in a 20 percent capital credit to help
of fset the cost of heavy oil and to try to get a response out of
the legacy fields to increase production. So, this situation has
been getting addressed there as well as under ACES a couple of
years | ater

He said he couldn't inmagine a scenario where the State of Al aska
would just sit back and watch a decline happen w thout doing
anything. There was a simlar situation in Cook Inlet and they
spent alnost every winter here having neetings on Cook Inlet
changing its fiscal structure with ring fencing and credits,
trying to get nore gas and oil production. And it appears to be
wor ki ng.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he wanted the fol ks at honme to realize that
when they wal k through these assunptions, the legislature's job
is see that sone of these things never nmaterialize. He
enphasi zed, "No is going to sit around and watch billions and
billions of barrels being stranded in the Arctic. It's just not
goi ng to happen.™

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- January 27, 2012



4:22:01 PM
MR. TANGEMAN said that is true, but it is critical to |ook at
proj ections and consider the trends.

4:23:14 PM
COM SSI ONER  BUTCHER said the departnent always seens to
forecast nore production than really occurs and they are trying

to come up with nore accurate nunbers. In that regard, the
departnment has created standardized reporting forns and is
digging into specific well and field data nore and focusing

closely on the decline curves for all of the operating wells.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked how the big three oil conpanies perform
their internal production forecasting. He understood that they
use a field by field analysis as conpared to well by well.

MR. RICE answered that their forecasting depends on the conpany
and the field. Different conpanies do things differently in the
same field, and do everything from rough estimtes based on
publicly available information for fields they don't have well
data on to sophisticated 3D reservoir nodels that cost nmulti-
mllions of dollars, wusing super conputers and teans of
engi neers. But even at the nost sophisticated level the 3D
nodels have information on individual wells +that can be
aggregated for a field.

4:27.:25 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said slide 10 was the price forecast, and
the chief econonmi st used to do it, but there were many questions
as to where it canme from and how it got there. So, Canbridge
Energy Research was hired to give a different view of what the
potential price was. Then three or four years ago the departnent
began to approach it differently by getting nore experts

revi ews. This year there was a trenmendous nunber of
conversati ons about t he di fference bet ween West Texas
Internmediate (W) and Alaska North Slope crude (ANS), because
ANS that had traditionally been a couple dollars a barrel under
WIl flipped 18 nonths ago.

SENATOR FRENCH remarked that it would be worth getting the
commi ssioner on record about the persistent price differential
Al aska enjoys over WII and how | ong he expects it to persist.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied that it occurred about 18 nonths
ago and peaked at about $28 in nid-Septenber; experts had
different reasons as to why. In general they thought there was a
regional glut of oil and not enough pipelines to get it to the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- January 27, 2012



@ulf to affect the price. So WII would nove up to a far greater
degree than ANS would nove down. Wat occurred is that it cane
much closer nmuch faster than they thought it was going to and
got as close as $4, but now it has begun to widen to as much as
$12. They still don't know why.

MR. TANGEMAN added in the fall, discussions were happening down
south about how to build nore pipelines and the reversal of
pi pelines that had an i mmedi ate effect as well.

4:33:19 PM
COW SS| ONER BUTCHER went to slide 11 that showed a breakdown of
FY12 and FY13 estimates of unrestricted revenue forecast; it

indicated that the production tax is half of what the state
brings in in FY13 and two-thirds in FY12, royalty is a little
| ess than one quarter, a nuch smaller anmount for corporate
incone tax, then non-oil revenue and a very snmall anmount for
property tax.

4:34: 03 PM

SENATOR  STEDVMAN  not ed t hat it's conf usi ng when somne
presentations are in total revenue and some are in unrestricted
general funds. He clarified that unrestricted general funds are
just of interest to the Finance Cormttee and its budgeting.

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER added that a good exanple of what would not
be included here would be tuition for the University of Al aska
which is income comng in for the state, but it's not
unrestricted; it's wused specifically for the University of
Al aska. There are many other areas like that in looking at the
total state budget.

MR. TANGEMAN added that in general there are several different
ways to look at the revenue pie in the RSB and shifted the
presentation to production tax credits and introduced M. Dees.

4:37:30 PM

LENNY DEES, Audit Master, Departnent of Revenue (DOR), said
slide 13 showed production tax liabilities from 2008 to 2012. He
said the 2011 tax credits are pending true-up that happens in
March and the 2012 nunber is an estimte of what they anticipate
will be applied through the end of June. Since PPT and ACES
almost $2.5 billion has been applied against production tax
l[iabilities and applications for transferable tax credit clains
of $1.7 billion hae received through the end of Decenber 2011
[slide 15].

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2012



SENATOR STEDMAN referred to slide 13 that showed a total of
about $400 million in credits in 2012 and recalled that was the
nunber in their budget docunents, but slide 14 shows $118.4 with
a footnote through Decenber 2011 and asked why the di screpancy.

MR. DEES replied slide 13 only tal ks about tax credits that have
been applied by conpany against their tax liabilities - not
necessarily i ncl usive of t he transferable t ax credit
certificate. The information on slide 14 is primarily the
explorers, the conpanies that are not yet producing who don't
have a tax liability. They are the ones who are applying for tax
credit certificates and will be converting themto cash, for the
nost part. Slide 15 shows the actual credits that have been
i ssued by year. The first line shows that Al aska has issued $1.5
billion worth of credits of the $1.7 billion requested on the
previous slide. O the $1.5 billion, the state has actually paid
out about $1.3 billion in refunds. The other $400,000 is what
the state would pay out in cash during FY2012.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked if their expectations for 2012 are on
track with their expectations from a year ago when $63 nmillion
of the $863 million in credits was targeted at Cook I|nlet.

MR. DEES replied yes. The Cook Inlet jack up rig credit was
i ncluded even though it will not conme to fruition because of the
del ays.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN referred to slide 13 and asked if the credit
structures for these years cones to about $4.5 billion.

MR. DEES answered no. The $3.5 billion is what has been applied
against tax liabilities and that would be added to the top line
on slide 15 which is the certificates that have been issued, for
a total of $3.9 billion. Slide 15 shows $132 nmillion in credits
have already been issued through the end of FY2012, and they
anticipate getting a lot nore applications between now and the
end of the fiscal year.

4. 46: 55 PM
MR. TANGEMAN said the nunber in the budget is $400 mllion;
these figures are "actual" through Decenber 2011

MR. DEES said slide 17 shows the total anmpbunt of credits to have

either been issued, are available to be redeened, or have been
appl i ed agai nst production tax liability is about $3.9 billion.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- January 27, 2012



SENATOR STEDMAN asked him to estimate 2012 through the end of
the fiscal year.

4:51: 45 PM

MR DEES replied the $400 million is the FY2012 final estimate
and that is what is shown in the RSB on page 31. The credits
that will be issued between now and the end of the year wll
include the $133 mllion plus what they anticipate will conme in.
It's difficult to estimate, but they use two or three of the
past years' activity to estimate that it could be sonewhere in
t he neighborhood of $300 to $400 million (credits claimed on
application and issued as a tax credit certificate redeenable
for cash).

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said ultimately the point is that the north of

$4 billion figure is Alaska's investnent in the North Slope
devel opnent and FY13 anticipates Alaska's investnent will be in
the range of $875 mllion using the current credit structure.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked if it had made any difference that the
state had put in $4.1 billion for this fiscal year.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied the conpanies should be able to
give hima good idea of what has been spent and potentially what
the difference is between the decline they had seen and the
decline they could have potentially seen. That is why the DOR
devel oped a data assessnent project to figure out nore
specifically where the nobney was going. Alnost all of the
conpani es gave them a five-year |ook-back that got down a little
nore into what the spendi ng was on.

SENATOR STEDMAN said they have the credits, but they also have
the ability to wite off 100 percent of CAPEX and he asked the
departnent to provide an estimate of what that is.

MR. TANGEMAN said that is a good point and is one of the
benefits of working under the net tax system

SENATOR STEDMAN said the question isn't really what the capita
expenditure is, but what the nonetary value is of being able to
imrediately wite off CAPEX in one or two years and how it
benefits the whol e package of the state's fiscal structure.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER responded that he would put that together
for him

4:57:30 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- January 27, 2012



CO CHAIR PASKVAN thanked the presenters and adjourned the
neeting at 4:57 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2012



